Minutes of the Regular School Board Meeting

Of the School Board of Independent School District No. 709 held at the Historic Old Central High School, 215 North First Avenue East, Duluth, Minnesota 55802, on

Tuesday, August 21, 2012

Members Present: Others Present:

Mary Cameron Ed Crawford, Assistant Superintendent
Tom Kasper Bill Hanson, Deputy Clerk
Mike Miernicki Melinda Thibault, Secretary

Art Johnston

Judy Seliga Punyko <u>Student Representatives</u>

Ann Wasson Alex Livesay

Bill Westholm

➤ Chair Wasson called the regular school board meeting of August 21, 2012 to order at 6:30 p.m., and the pledge of allegiance to the American flag was given.

M-Kasper, S-Westholm, to approve the agenda as presented.

Member Johnston noted that he submitted two items for the agenda that were not included. Chair Wasson explained why they were not included on the agenda. Board discussion took place regarding adding agenda items.

Upon a vote on the agenda as presented, the same was approved – 6-1 as follows:

Yea: Cameron, Kasper, Miernicki, Seliga Punyko, Wasson, Westholm Nay: Johnston

Chair Wasson asked school board members if there were any corrections or changes to the minutes of the Regular School Board Meeting of July 17, 2012.

M-Westholm, S-Kasper, to approve the minutes of the July 17, 2012 Regular School Board Meeting as presented.

Member Johnston noted that he previously requested changes to the June minutes that were not made and wanted those changes made. Board discussion took place regarding the changes. Chair Wasson explained why they were not included and ruled that they would not be included.

Upon a vote the same was approved 6-1 as follows:

Yea: Cameron, Kasper, Miernicki, Seliga Punyko, Wasson, Westholm Nay: Johnston

Chair Wasson asked school board members if there were any corrections or changes to the minutes of the Special School Board Meeting of July 24, 2012.

2 – Minutes of the Regular School Board Meeting August 21, 2012

M-Kasper, S-Westholm, to approve the minutes of the July 24, 2012 Special School Board Meeting as presented. Upon a vote, the same was approved – 6-1 as follows:

Yea: Cameron, Kasper, Miernicki, Seliga Punyko, Wasson, Westholm

Nay: Johnston

M-Miernicki, S-Westholm, to exclude motions that are unofficial and have no second from the minutes.

Member Johnston noted his opposition to the motion.

Upon a vote the same was approved 6-1 as follows:

Yea: Cameron, Kasper, Miernicki, Seliga Punyko, Wasson, Westholm

Nay: Johnston

Public Comments August 2012 ****

Chair Wasson reminded the audience to follow the civility code and that they have three minutes to speak.

Loren Martell, 623 East 7^{th} Street, spoke to the board regarding his concerns with the school board and financing issues.

Marcia Stromgren, 6219 Lakewood Road, spoke to the board regarding her concerns with the lack of confidence the public has in the school board and cost overruns in the facilities plan.

Communications, Petitions, Etc. August 2012 ****

Superintendent Gronseth stated that there hadn't been any communications received.

Superintendent's Report August 2012

- There are town hall meetings coming up and they won't just be focused on the levy it's about the future of education in the community
 - o The public can participate by mail, email, voicemail, individual meetings, etc.
- School is starting in a couple of weeks and students and staff are excited to get started.
 - o Some open houses have already been held and there are more coming up
- Teachers have been working hard to prep for a new year
- Everyone is excited about opening the two new middle schools
- A start of school mailing went out containing a lot of valuable information

Education Committee Report August 2012

Member Kasper presented the Education Committee report, a copy of same being in the hands of each school board member.

Member Kasper presented the resolution:

RESOLUTION

Acceptance of Grant Awards to Duluth Public Schools

WHEREAS, Minnesota Statute 465.03 requires a school district to accept grants by resolution expressed in the terms prescribed by the donor in full; and,

WHEREAS, acceptance of the grant in accordance with the donor's terms is in the best interest of the Duluth Public Schools:

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED that the Duluth Public Schools does accept the below-described grants from said organizations in accordance with the terms set forth herein.

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED that the Duluth Public Schools wishes to extend its

grateful appreciation to these various organizations.

| | Organization | Author/Contact | Project Title | Award Amount | Terms |
|---|---|----------------|------------------------|--------------|--|
| 1 | Family Services Collaborative – Southern St. Louis County | Pam Rees | Reflective Practice | \$15,657 | Funds from this grant award will be used to continue supporting Reflective Practice with Head Start and Early Childhood Family Education classroom teams on a monthly basis with a mental health consultant. |
| 2 | Lloyd K. Johnson Foundation | Deb Wagner | Spirit of Mothering | \$20,000 | Funds from this grant award will be used to support the Families in Transition Spirit of Mothering Program. |

Resolution #E-8-12-3046

August 21, 2012

M-Kasper, S-Seliga Punyko, to approve the Resolution E-8-12-3046 Acceptance of Grants Awards to Duluth Public Schools. Upon a vote, the same was approved – unanimously.

M-Kasper, S-Seliga Punyko, to approve the remainder of the Education Committee Report as presented.

4 – Minutes of the Regular School Board Meeting August 21, 2012

Member Johnston withheld Item 1.A.1) 2012 Assessment Results to comment on the report and note concerns he has. Superintendent Gronseth reviewed areas of the report and stated that there has been progress made but there is still a long way to go.

Upon a vote, the same was approved – unanimously.

Human Resources Committee Report August 2012

Member Westholm presented the Human Resources Committee report, a copy of same being in the hands of each school board member.

M-Westholm, S-Kasper, to approve the second reading of Policy 4211. Upon a vote, the same was approved – unanimously.

M-Westholm, S-Kasper, to approve the remainder of the Human Resources Committee Report as presented. Upon a vote, the same was approved – unanimously.

M-Westholm, S-Kasper, to approve the new OST Site Supervisor Position. Upon a vote the same was approved – unanimously.

Business Committee Report March 2012

Member Seliga Punyko presented the Business Committee report, a copy of same being in the hands of each school board member.

Member Seliga Punyko presented the resolution:

RESOLUTION Authorized Student Activity Bank Account Signer

RESOLVED, by the School Board of Independent School District No. 709, St. Louis County, Minnesota, that it hereby authorizes the following:

| District | Banking | Account | Addition of | Removal of |
|-----------------|-----------------|---------|-------------------|--------------------------|
| Building | Institution | Number | Authorized Signer | Authorized Signer |
| Lincoln Park | Park State Bank | XXXXXX0 | Adrian Norman | _ |
| Denfeld | DTCU | XXXX2 | James Erickson | |
| ALC (Unity) | DTCU | XXXX4 | | William Crandall |
| | | | | |
| B-8-12-3047 | | | | August 21, 2012 |

M-Seliga Punyko, S-Kasper, to approve Resolution B-8-12-3047 - Authorized Student Activity Bank Account Signer. Upon a vote, the same was approved – unanimously.

Member Seliga Punyko presented the resolution:

Resolution Relating To General Obligation Aid Anticipation Certificates Of Indebtedness, Series 2012c, In An Amount Not To Exceed \$23,000,000; Authorizing The Issuance And Establishing The Terms Thereof; And Authorizing Certain Officers Of The District To Award The Sale Thereof And To Take Such Action And Execute All Documents Necessary To Accomplish The Award And Sale

BE IT RESOLVED by the School Board (the "School Board") of Independent School District No. 709, St. Louis County, Minnesota (the "District"), as follows:

Section 1. <u>Certificates Purpose and Authorization.</u>

- 1.01 Under and pursuant to the authority contained in Minnesota Statutes, Sections 126C.50 through 126C.56, as amended (the "Act"), and Minnesota Statutes, Chapter 475, the board of any school district may borrow money upon aid anticipation certificates in anticipation of receipt of state aid for schools as defined by Minnesota State and federal school aids to be distributed by or through the Minnesota Department of Education (the "Department").
- 1.02 The School Board hereby determines that it is necessary to borrow, pursuant to the Act, upon aid anticipation certificates of indebtedness in an amount not to exceed \$23,000,000 in anticipation of receipt of state aids for schools and of federal school aids to be distributed by or through the Department during the July 1, 2012 to June 30, 2013 fiscal year (the "School Aids"), which are necessary for timely payments of anticipated expenditures from the District's operating funds (the "Funds"). Such amount does not exceed 75% of the School Aids which are receivable by the District in such fiscal year as estimated by the Commissioner of the Department.
- 1.03 The School Board hereby determines that it is necessary and expedient that the District issue general obligation aid anticipation certificates of indebtedness as described in Section 1.02 above in a single issuance of General Obligation Aid Anticipation Certificates of Indebtedness, Series 2012C, in an amount not to exceed \$23,000,000 (the "Certificates").
- Section 2. <u>Award of Sale</u>. Pursuant to Minnesota Statutes, Section 126C.56, the requirements of public sale do not apply to the issuance under certain circumstances of aid anticipation certificates of indebtedness. The District has retained PMA Securities, Inc., in Albertville, Minnesota, as independent financial advisor in connection with the sale of the Certificates. The School Board desires to proceed with the sale of the Certificates by direct negotiation to Northland Securities, Inc., in Minneapolis, Minnesota (the "Purchaser"), and the Chair or Vice Chair and the Clerk are authorized to award the sale of the Certificates and execute a contract on the part of the District for the sale of the Certificates upon the terms set forth herein. The Chair or Vice Chair and the Clerk are also authorized to take all other action, consistent with the resolution, that is necessary to complete the award and sale of the Certificates provided that the principal amount of the Certificates shall not in any event exceed \$23,000,000, nor shall the interest rate thereon exceed 1.5% per annum in any event. The authorization contained herein shall expire on September 21, 2012.
- Section 3. <u>Full Faith and Credit Pledge</u>. The School Board hereby declares that the full faith and credit and taxing power of the District and the receipts of the School Aids, to the extent necessary to repay the Certificates, shall be and are hereby at all times irrevocably pledged

for the payment of principal and interest on the Certificates when due.

Section 4. <u>Certificates; Terms.</u> The Certificates to be issued hereunder shall be dated the date of delivery to the Purchaser, but no later than September 20, 2012, shall be issued in the denomination of \$5,000 each, or any integral multiple thereof, in fully registered form, lettered and numbered R-1 and upward. The Certificates shall mature on September 20, 2013 (the "Maturity Date").

The Certificates shall not be subject to redemption prior to the Maturity Date. The interest on the Certificates shall be payable on the Maturity Date. Interest shall be computed on the basis of a 360-day year of twelve 30-day months and will be rounded pursuant to the rules of the Municipal Securities Rulemaking Board. The Bond Registrar designated below shall make the interest payments with respect to the Certificates by check or draft mailed to the registered owners of the Certificates shown on the bond registration records maintained by the Bond Registrar at the close of business on the 15th day prior to the Maturity Date, whether or not a business day, at such owners' addresses shown on such bond registration records. Principal of each Certificate shall be payable in accordance with and on presentation and surrender of the Certificate to the Bond Registrar.

Section 5. Bond Registrar; Registration of Certificates.

- 5.01 A. Appointment of Bond Registrar. The School Board hereby appoints U.S. Bank National Association of St. Paul, Minnesota, as registrar, authenticating agent, paying agent and transfer agent for the Certificates (such bank or its successor thereof is herein referred to as the "Bond Registrar"). No Certificate shall be valid or obligatory for any purpose unless or until the Bond Registrar's authentication certificate on such Certificate, substantially as set forth in Section 6 hereof, shall have been duly executed by an authorized representative of the Bond Registrar. Authentication certificates on different Certificates need not be signed by the same representative. The executed authentication certificate on each Certificate shall be conclusive evidence that it has been authenticated and delivered under this Resolution.
- B. The District shall cause to be kept at the principal corporate office of the Bond Registrar a bond register in which, subject to such reasonable regulations as the Bond Registrar may prescribe, the District shall provide for the registration of the Certificates and the registration of transfers of the Certificates entitled to be registered or transferred as herein provided. In the event of the resignation or removal of the Bond Registrar or its incapability of acting as such, the bond registration records shall be maintained at the office of the successor Bond Registrar as may be appointed by the School Board.
- C. At the option of the registered owners, the Certificates may be exchanged for other Certificates of any authorized denomination, of a like aggregate principal amount, maturing upon the same date, upon surrender of the Certificates to be exchanged at the principal corporate office of the Bond Registrar. Whenever any Certificates are so surrendered for exchange, the District shall execute and the Bond Registrar shall authenticate, if required by law or this Resolution, and deliver the Certificates which the registered owner making the exchange is entitled to receive. Upon surrender for transfer of any Certificate at the principal corporate office of the Bond Registrar, the District shall execute and the Bond Registrar shall authenticate, if required by law or this Resolution, and deliver, in the names(s) of the designated transferee(s), one or more new certificates of a like aggregate principal amount, as requested by the transferor. All Certificates surrendered upon the exchange provided for in this Resolution shall be promptly cancelled by the Bond Registrar and thereafter disposed of as directed by the School Board. All Certificates issued in exchange for or upon transfer of the Certificates shall be valid obligations

of the District evidencing the same debt and entitled to the same benefits under this Resolution as the Certificates surrendered for such exchange or transfer. Every Certificate presented for a transfer or exchange shall be duly endorsed or be accompanied by a written instrument of transfer, in form satisfactory to the District and the Bond Registrar, duly executed by the registered owner thereof or the owner's attorney duly authorized in writing. The District or the Bond Registrar may require payment of a sum sufficient to cover any tax or other governmental charge that may be imposed in connection with the transfer or exchange of the Certificates, other than exchange expressly provided in this Resolution to be made, without expense or without charge to the registered owner.

D. Each Certificate delivered upon transfer of or in exchange for or in lieu of any other Certificate shall carry all of the rights to interest, accrued and unpaid and to accrue, which are carried by such other Certificate. Each Certificate shall be dated by the Bond Registrar as of the date of its authentication or manual execution, as the case may be. The District and the Bond Registrar shall not be required to make any transfer or exchange during the 15 days next preceding the Maturity Date.

5.02 Book-Entry System.

- A. In order to make the Certificates eligible for the services provided by DTC, the District has previously agreed to the applicable provisions set forth in the Blanket Issuer Letter of Representations which has been executed by the District and DTC (the "Representation Letter").
- B. Notwithstanding any provision herein to the contrary, so long as the Certificates shall be in Book-Entry Form, the provisions of this Section 5.02 shall govern.
- C. All of the Certificates shall be registered in the name of Cede & Co., as nominee for DTC. Payment of interest on and principal of any Certificate registered in the name of Cede & Co. shall be made by wire transfer or New York Clearing House or equivalent same day funds by 10:00 a.m. CT or as soon as possible thereafter following the Bond Registrar's receipt of funds from the District on the Maturity Date to the account of Cede & Co. at the address indicated in or pursuant to the Representation Letter.
- D. DTC (or its nominees) shall be and remain recorded on the Bond Register as the holder of all Certificates which are in Book-Entry Form. No transfer of any Certificate in Book-Entry Form shall be made, except from DTC to another depository (or its nominee) or except to terminate the Book-Entry Form. All Certificates of such stated maturity of any Certificates in Book-Entry Form shall be issued and remain in a single Certificate registered in the name of DTC (or its nominee); provided, however, that upon termination of the Book-Entry Form pursuant to the Representation Letter, the District shall, upon delivery of all Certificates of such series from DTC, promptly execute, and the Bond Registrar shall thereupon authenticate and deliver, Certificates of such series to all persons who were beneficial owners thereof immediately prior to such termination; and the Bond Registrar shall register such beneficial owners as holders of the applicable Certificates.

The Bond Registrar shall maintain accurate books and records of the principal balance, if any, of each such outstanding Certificate in Book-Entry Form, which shall be conclusive for all purposes whatsoever. Upon the authentication of any new Certificate in Book-Entry Form in exchange for a previous Certificate, the Bond Registrar shall designate thereon the principal balance remaining on such Certificate according to the Bond Registrar's books and records.

No beneficial owner (other than DTC) shall be registered as the holder on the Bond

Register for any Certificate in Book-Entry Form or entitled to receive any bond certificate. The beneficial ownership interest in any Certificate in Book-Entry Form shall be recorded, evidenced and transferred solely in accordance with the Book-Entry System.

Except as expressly provided to the contrary herein, the District and the Bond Registrar may treat and deem DTC to be the absolute owner of all Certificates of each series which are in Book-Entry Form (i) for the purpose of payment of the principal of and interest on such Certificate, (ii) for the purpose of giving notices hereunder, and (iii) for all other purposes whatsoever.

E. The District and the Bond Registrar shall each give notices to DTC of such matters and at such times as are required by the Representation Letter, including with respect to any notice required or permitted under this Bond Resolution to be given to any holder of a Certificate.

All notices of any nature required or permitted hereunder to be delivered to a holder of a Certificate in Book-Entry Form shall be transmitted to beneficial owners of such Certificates at such times and in such manners as shall be determined by DTC, the participants and indirect participants in accordance with the Book-Entry System and the Representation Letter.

- F. All payments of principal, redemption price of and interest on any Certificates in Book-Entry Form shall be paid to DTC (or Cede & Co.) in accordance with the Book-Entry System and the Representation Letter in same day funds by wire transfer.
- 5.03 Lost or Damaged Certificates. If a Certificate becomes mutilated or is destroyed, stolen or lost, the Bond Registrar will deliver a new Certificate of like amount, number, maturity date and tenor in exchange and substitution for and upon cancellation of the mutilated Certificate or in lieu of and in substitution for any Certificate destroyed, stolen or lost, upon the payment of the reasonable expenses and charges of the Bond Registrar and the District in connection therewith, including the cost of printing new Certificates; and, in the case of a Certificate destroyed, stolen or lost, upon filing with the Bond Registrar and the District of evidence satisfactory to them that the Certificate was destroyed, stolen or lost, and of the ownership thereof, and upon furnishing to the Bond Registrar and the District of an appropriate bond or indemnity in form, substance and amount satisfactory to them and as provided by law, in which both the District and the Bond Registrar must be named as obligees. Certificates so surrendered to the Bond Registrar will be canceled by the Bond Registrar and evidence of such cancellation must be given to the District. If the mutilated, destroyed, stolen or lost Certificate has already matured or been called for redemption in accordance with its terms, it is not necessary to issue a new Certificate prior to payment.

5.04 Payment of Certificates.

- A. The District and the Bond Registrar may treat the person in whose name any Certificate is registered as the owner of such Certificate for the purpose of receiving payment of principal of and interest on such Certificate and for all other purposes whatsoever, whether or not such Certificate be overdue, and neither the District nor the Bond Registrar shall be affected by notice to the contrary.
- B. The principal of and interest on the Certificates shall be payable by the Bond Registrar in such funds as are legal tender for the payment of debts due the United States of America. The District shall pay the reasonable and customary charges of the Bond Registrar for the disbursement of principal and interest.
- 5.05 <u>Delivery</u>. Delivery of the Certificates and payment of the purchase price shall be made at a place mutually satisfactory to the District and the Purchaser. Printed or typewritten

9 – Minutes of the Regular School Board Meeting August 21, 2012

and executed Certificates shall be furnished by the District without cost to the Purchaser. The Certificates, when prepared in accordance with this Resolution and executed, shall be delivered by or under the direction of the Clerk to the Purchaser upon receipt of the purchase price plus accrued interest.

Section 6. <u>Form of Certificate</u>. The Certificates to be issued hereunder shall be printed or typewritten in substantially the following form:

UNITED STATES OF AMERICA STATE OF MINNESOTA COUNTY OF ST. LOUIS

INDEPENDENT SCHOOL DISTRICT NO. 709 (DULUTH)

GENERAL OBLIGATION AID ANTICIPATION CERTIFICATE OF INDEBTEDNESS, SERIES 2012C

R-______

| terest Rate | Maturity Date | Date of Original <u>Issue</u> | <u>CUSIP</u> |
|--------------------|--------------------|-------------------------------|--------------|
| % | September 20, 2013 | September, 2012 | |

DOLLARS

REGISTERED OWNER: CEDE & CO.

PRINCIPAL AMOUNT:

Independent School District No. 709, St. Louis County, State of Minnesota (the "District"), acknowledges itself to be indebted and for value received hereby promises to pay to the registered owner specified above, or registered assigns, the principal amount specified above on the maturity date specified above, together with interest thereon from the date of original issue specified above until paid at the annual interest rate specified above. The interest shall be payable on the Maturity Date specified above, at the rate per annum specified above, calculated on the basis of a 360-day year of twelve 30-day months, until the principal amount is paid or has been provided for. This Certificate is not subject to redemption prior to maturity. Both principal and interest are payable at U.S. Bank National Association, in St. Paul, Minnesota, as registrar, paying agent, authenticating agent and transfer agent (the "Bond Registrar"), or at the office of such successor Bond Registrar as may be designated by the School Board, in coin or currency of the United States of America, which on the date of payment is legal tender for payment of public and private debts. The Bond Registrar shall make the interest payment with respect to

this Certificate directly to the registered owner hereof shown on the bond registration records maintained on behalf of the District by the Bond Registrar at the close of business on the 15th day of the month next preceding the Maturity Date (whether or not a business day) at such owner's address shown on said bond registration records, without, except for the payment of principal of the Certificate, the presentation and surrender of this Certificate, and all such payments shall discharge the obligation of the District to the extent of the payments so made. Payment of principal of the Certificates shall be made to the registered owner upon presentation and surrender of this Certificate to the Bond Registrar when due.

This Certificate is one of a series issued by the District in the aggregate amount of \$23,000,000, pursuant to the authority contained in Minnesota Statutes, Sections 126C.50 through 126C.56, as amended, and Chapter 475, and all other laws and pursuant to an authorizing resolution adopted by the School Board of the District on August 21, 2012 (the "Resolution") authorizing the Chair or the Vice Chair and the Clerk to award the sale of the Certificates on terms contained in the Resolution, for the purpose of authorizing receipt of unpaid state aids for school receivables by the District as hereinafter set forth.

It is hereby certified and recited that the amount of School Aids as defined in the Resolution yet to be received by the District in the July 1, 2012 to June 30, 2013 fiscal year, for deposit in the District's operating funds (the "Funds") is in the amount of \$51,977,814.00 as estimated by the State of Minnesota Commissioner of Education; that heretofore no aid anticipation certificates have been issued against said School Aids; and that the Certificates are issued in anticipation of collection of said School Aids.

This Certificate constitutes a general obligation of the District, and the full faith and credit and taxing powers of the District have been and are hereby irrevocably pledged to provide monies for the prompt and full payment of principal and interest when due. This Certificate is payable from a special debt service fund of the District established for payment of the Certificates by the Resolution.

The District has qualified the Certificates for participation in the State of Minnesota program to preclude default of school district debt, pursuant to Minnesota Statutes, Section 126C.55, as amended. If the District is unable to make any portion of the principal or interest payments on the Certificates on or before the date due, the State of Minnesota has agreed to make such payment in the District's place.

The Certificates of this series are issued as fully registered certificates without coupons, in the denomination of \$5,000 each, or any integral multiple thereof. Subject to limitations set forth in the Resolution, the District will, at the request of the registered owner, issue one or more new fully registered certificates in the name of the registered owner in the aggregate principal amount equal to the unpaid principal balance of this Certificate, and of like tenor except as to number and principal amount. Subject to the limitations set forth in the Resolution, this Certificate is transferable by the registered owner hereof upon surrender of this Certificate for transfer at the principal corporate office of the Bond Registrar, duly

endorsed or accompanied by a written instrument of transfer in form satisfactory to the Bond Registrar and executed by the registered owner hereof or the owner's attorney duly authorized in writing. Thereupon the District shall execute and the Bond Registrar shall authenticate and deliver, in exchange for this Certificate, one or more new fully registered certificates in the name of the transferee, of an authorized denomination, in an aggregate principal amount equal to the unpaid principal amount of this Certificate. No service charge shall be made for any transfer or exchange hereinbefore referred to but the District may require payment of a sum sufficient to cover any tax or other governmental charge payable in connection therewith.

IT IS FURTHER CERTIFIED AND RECITED that all acts and conditions required by the Constitution and laws of the State of Minnesota to be done, and to exist precedent to and in the issuance of this Certificate in order to make it a valid and binding general obligation of the District in accordance with its terms, have been done and do exist in form, time, and manner as so required; and this Certificate, together with all other debts of the District outstanding on the date hereof and the date of its actual issuance and delivery, does not exceed any constitutional or statutory limitation of indebtedness; that all taxable property within the boundaries of the District is subject to the levy of ad valorem taxes to the extent needed to pay the principal hereof and the interest hereon when due, without limitation as to rate or amount.

This Certificate shall not be valid or become obligatory for any purpose or be entitled to any security or benefit under the Resolution until the Bond Registrar's Authentication Certificate hereon shall have been executed by the Bond Registrar by one of its authorized representatives.

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, Independent School District No. 709, by its School Board, has caused this Certificate to be executed in its name by the signatures of the Chair and the Clerk of the School Board; and the District has caused this Certificate to be dated the date of original issue set forth above.

| Attest: | |
|--------------------------------|--------------------------------|
| (form – no signature required) | (form – no signature required) |
| Clerk | Chair |
| Date of Authentication: | |

BOND REGISTRAR'S AUTHENTICATION CERTIFICATE

The Bond Registrar confirms that the books reflect the ownership of a Certificate registered in the name of the owner named above in the principal amount stated above and this Certificate is one of the Certificates of the series issued pursuant to the Resolution hereinabove described.

U.S. BANK NATIONAL ASSOCIATION St. Paul, Minnesota

A 44 - -4.

power of substitution in the premises.

| Ву | |
|--|---|
| Authoriz | ted Representative |
| | REGISTRATION CERTIFICATE |
| name of the St. Paul, Movalid unless thereunto of the ownership accruing the street of the street of the street ownership accruing the street ownership accr | s Certificate must be registered as to both principal and interest in the e owner on the books to be kept by U.S. Bank National Association of Minnesota, as Bond Registrar. No transfer of this Certificate shall be as made on said books by the registered owner or the owner's attorney duly authorized and similarly noted on the registration books. The of the unpaid principal balance of this Certificate and the interest hereon is registered on the books of U.S. Bank National Association in f the registered owner last noted below. |
| <u>Date</u> | Registered Owner Signature of Bond Registrar |
| 9//12 | Cede & Co. c/o The Depository Trust Company 55 Water Street New York, NY 10041 Federal Taxpayer I.D. |
| | No.: 13-2555119 |
| | ASSIGNMENT |
| | R VALUE RECEIVED, the undersigned sells, assigns, and transfers |
| | (Name and Address of Assignee) |
| | Social Security or other Identifying Number of Assignee |
| constitute a | Certificate and all rights thereunder and does hereby irrevocably and appoint attorney to e said Certificate on the books kept for registration thereof with full |

Dated: ______

NOTICE: The signature of this assignment must correspond with the name of the registered owner as it appears upon the face of the within Certificate in every particular, without alteration or enlargement or any change whatsoever.

Signature Guaranteed:

(Bank, Trust Company, member of National Securities Exchange)

Unless this Certificate is presented by an authorized representative of The Depository Trust Company, a New York corporation ("DTC"), to the District or its agent for registration of transfer, exchange, or payment, and any certificate issued is registered in the name of Cede & Co. or in such other name as is requested by an authorized representative of DTC (and any payment is made to Cede & Co. or to such other entity as is requested by an authorized representative of DTC), ANY TRANSFER, PLEDGE, OR OTHER USE HEREOF FOR VALUE OR OTHERWISE BY OR TO ANY PERSON IS WRONGFUL, inasmuch as the registered owner hereof, Cede & Co., has an interest herein.

Section 7. Funds; Deposits.

A. The Treasurer shall credit the proceeds of the sale of the Certificates to the Funds, except for the deposit to the Debt Service Fund, and shall be used solely to pay claims duly approved and allowed with respect to current operating expenses of the kinds and within the amounts provided in the official budget of the District. Such proceeds shall be recorded as liabilities of the Funds, pursuant to Minnesota Statutes, Section 123B.78 and the proceeds shall be used for the purposes for which the School Aids may be utilized and to pay the costs of issuance of the Certificates.

B. A separate debt service fund for the Certificates is hereby created, to be designated as the "Series 2012C General Obligation Aid Anticipation Certificates of Indebtedness Fund" (the "Debt Service Fund"), to be used solely for the payment of interest on and the principal of the Certificates when due. The Treasurer shall credit to the Debt Service Fund all proceeds of the Certificates in excess of \$23,000,000. At such time as State Aids distributable to the District for the current school year, receipts of which are to be recorded as assets of the Funds pursuant to the Uniform Financial Accounting and Reporting System for Minnesota school districts, and which remain to be received, are in the amount of 105% of the principal and interest due on the Certificates issued to fund the deposit to the Funds, on the Maturity Date, there shall be deposited in the Debt Service Fund all subsequent receipts of State Aids or other monies of the District legally available therefor, until the balance in the Debt

Service Fund is sufficient to pay all principal and interest due on the Certificates at maturity.

- C. The School Board hereby certifies that the School Aids for the July 1, 2012 to June 30, 2013 fiscal year yet to be received are in the amount of \$51,977,814.00.
- D. The full faith and credit of the District are pledged to pay the Certificates. If the School Aids are insufficient to pay all principal and interest on the Certificates when due, the Treasurer shall, nevertheless, provide sufficient monies from other funds of the District which are available for that purpose, and such other funds shall be reimbursed from the Funds when the balance therein is sufficient. It is recognized that the District's liability on the Certificates is not limited to the collection of the School Aids, and the School Board covenants and agrees that it will levy upon all taxable property within the boundaries of the District and cause to be extended, assessed, and collected any additional taxes found necessary for full payment of the principal of and interest on the Certificates, without limitation as to rate or amount. The School Board hereby covenants and obligates itself to be bound by the provisions of Minnesota Statutes, Section 126C.55, as amended.
- The School Board authorizes and directs the Board Chair, the Superintendent or the Chief Financial Officer/Executive Director of Business Services to submit a Minnesota School District Credit Enhancement program Application for Default Preclusion to the Minnesota Department of Education, as provided by Minnesota Statutes, Section 126C.55. All actions by such officers taken with regard to such application prior to the date of this resolution are ratified and approved. The School Board hereby covenants and obligates itself to notify the Commissioner of Education of a potential default in the payment of principal and interest on the Certificates and to use the provisions of Minnesota Statutes, Section 126C.55 to guarantee, to the extent provided therein, payment of the principal and interest on the Certificates when due. The School Board further covenants to deposit with the Bond Registrar or any successor paying agent three (3) days prior to the date on which a payment is due an amount sufficient to make that payment or to notify the Commissioner of Education that it will be unable to make all or a portion of that payment. The Bond Registrar is authorized and directed to notify the Commissioner of Education if it becomes aware of a potential default in the payment of principal or interest on the Certificates, or if, on the day two (2) business days prior to the date a payment is due on the Certificates, there are insufficient funds to make that payment on deposit with the Bond Registrar. The District understands that as a result of its covenant to be bound by the provisions of Minnesota Statutes, Section 126C.55, the provisions of that section shall be binding as long as any Certificates of this issue remain outstanding.
- F. The District further covenants to comply with all procedures now or hereafter established by the Department of Management and Budget and the Department of Education of the State of Minnesota pursuant to Minnesota Statutes, Section 126C.55, subdivision 2(c) and otherwise to take such actions as necessary to comply with that section. The Chair, Clerk, Superintendent or Chief Financial Officer/Executive Director of Business Services are authorized to execute any applicable Minnesota Department of Education forms regarding such program.
- G. The School Board acknowledges, represents and covenants that it must include a provision in its agreement with the Bond Registrar, as paying agent for the Certificates, that requires the Bond Registrar to inform the Commissioner of Education if it becomes aware of a potential default in the payment of principal or interest on the Certificates or if, on the day two business days prior to the date a payment is due on the Certificates, there are insufficient funds to make the payment on deposit with the Bond Registrar.

Section 8. Tax Covenants and Arbitrage Matters.

8.01 Restrictive Action. The District covenants and agrees with the owners from time

of the Certificates that it will not take, or permit to be taken by any of its officers, employees or agents, any action which would cause the interest on the Certificates to become includable in gross income for federal income tax purposes under the Internal Revenue Code of 1986, as amended (the "Code"), and applicable Treasury Regulations (the "Regulations"), and covenants to take any and all actions within its powers to ensure that the interest on the Certificates will not become includable in gross income for federal income tax purposes under the Code and the Regulations.

- 8.02 Statement of Working Capital Expenditures and Arbitrage Certificate. School Board estimates that the principal amount of the Certificates does not exceed (i) the largest amount by which working capital expenditures in the Funds of the District exceed available amounts for payment thereof during the period for which the State Aids are anticipated and during which the Certificates will be outstanding, and (ii) the amount of a working capital reserve equal to five percent of the District's working capital expenditures in the Funds for the prior fiscal year, all as contemplated by the Regulations. The District Treasurer is directed to prepare a statement of estimated expenditures during the period for which the State Aids and other funds are anticipated and during which the Certificates will be outstanding for the purpose of verifying the correctness of this estimate. In the event that such statement does not verify such estimate, the principal amount of the Certificates shall be reduced to such amount as will not exceed the amount permitted by the Regulations. Prior to the issuance of the Certificates, the Chair and the Clerk, being the officers of the District charged with the responsibility for issuing the Certificates pursuant to this resolution, shall execute and deliver to the Purchaser a certificate as contemplated by the Regulations stating the facts, estimates and circumstances in existence on the date of issuance and delivery of the Certificates which indicate that the proceeds of the Certificates will not be used in a manner that would cause the Certificates to be "arbitrage bonds" within the meaning of the Code and the Regulations.
- 8.03 <u>Arbitrage Rebate</u>. The District acknowledges that the Certificates are subject to the rebate requirements of Section 148(f) of the Code. The District covenants and agrees to retain such records, make such determinations, file such reports and documents and pay such amounts at such times as are required under Section 148(f) and applicable Regulations to preserve the exclusion of interest on the Certificates from gross income for federal income tax purposes, unless the Certificates qualify for an exception from the rebate requirement pursuant to one of the spending exceptions set forth in Section 1.148-7 of the Regulations and no "gross proceeds" of the Certificates (other than amounts constituting a "bona fide debt service fund") arise during or after the expenditure of the original proceeds thereof.
- Section 9. <u>Filing with County Auditor</u>. The Clerk of the District is directed to file with the County Auditor a certified copy of this Resolution, and such other information as the County Auditor may require, and to obtain from the County Auditor a certificate stating that the Certificates herein authorized have been duly entered on his register.
- Section 10. <u>Certified Proceedings</u>. The officers of the District and the County Auditor are authorized and directed to prepare and furnish to the Purchaser of the Certificates and to bond counsel certified copies of all proceedings and records of the District pertaining to the authorization, issuance, and sale of the Certificates and such other affidavits and certificates as may reasonably be required to show the facts relating to the legality and marketability of the Certificates as such facts appear from the official books and records of the officers' custody or are otherwise known. All such certified copies, certificates, and affidavits, including any heretofore furnished, constitute representations of the District as to the correctness of facts recited therein and the actions stated therein to have been taken.
 - Section 11. Absent or Disabled Officers. In the event of the absence or disability of

the Chair, the Clerk or the Treasurer, such officers or members of the School Board as in the opinion of the District's attorney may act in their behalf shall, without further act or authorization, execute and deliver the Certificates, and do all things and execute all instruments and documents required to be done or executed by such absent or disabled officers.

Section 12. <u>Continuing Disclosure</u>. The School Board of the District acknowledges that the Certificates are subject to the continuing disclosure requirements of Rule 15c2-12 promulgated by the Securities and Exchange Commission under the Securities Exchange Act of 1934 (17 C.F.R. § 240.15c2-12) (the "Rule"). The Rule governs the obligations of certain underwriters to require that issuers of municipal bonds enter into agreements for the benefit of the bondholders to provide continuing disclosure with respect to the obligations. To provide for the public availability of certain information relating to the Certificates and the security therefor and to permit underwriters of the Certificates to comply with the Rule, which will enhance the marketability of the Certificates, the Chair and the Clerk are hereby authorized and directed to execute a Continuing Disclosure Certificate substantially in the form of the Certificate currently on file in the office of the District.

Section 13. <u>Official Statement</u>. The Chair and the Clerk are hereby authorized and directed to certify that they have examined the Official Statement prepared and circulated in connection with the issuance and sale of the Certificates and that to the best of their knowledge and belief the Official Statement is a complete and accurate representation of the facts and representations made therein as of the date thereof.

B-8-12-3048 August 21, 2012

M-Seliga-Punyko, S-Kasper, to approve Resolution B-8-12-3048 – 2 Resolution Relating To General Obligation Aid Anticipation Certificates Of Indebtedness, Series 2012c, In An Amount Not To Exceed \$23,000,000; Authorizing The Issuance And Establishing The Terms Thereof; And Authorizing Certain Officers Of The District To Award The Sale Thereof And To Take Such Action And Execute All Documents Necessary To Accomplish The Award And Sale.

Member Johnston noted his opposition to the resolution.

Upon a vote, the same was approved – 6-1 as follows:

Yea: Cameron, Kasper, Miernicki, Seliga Punyko, Wasson, Westholm

Nay: Johnston

Member Seliga Punyko presented the resolution:

RESOLUTION Release and Pledge of Collateral

BE IT RESOLVED, by the School Board of Independent School District No. 709, St. Louis County, Minnesota, that it hereby releases the \$250,000 par value FHOR note, CUSIP number XXXXXXTS6, pledged as collateral by Duluth Teachers Credit Union.

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, By the School Board, that it accepts the pledge collateral

17 – Minutes of the Regular School Board Meeting August 21, 2012

of a \$250,000 par value FNNT note maturing 8/24/2015, CUSIP number XXXXXRP80 in exchange for the released collateral noted above.

B-8-12-3049 August 21, 2012

M-Seliga Punyko, S-Kasper, to approve Resolution B-8-12-3049 —Release and Pledge of Collateral. Upon a vote, the same was approved — unanimously.

M-Seliga Punyko, S-Westholm, to approve the Business Committee Report, withholding the resolutions, as presented.

Member Johnston withheld Item 6.D. – Facilities Management and Capital Project Status Report to note questions he has asked about cost overruns and hasn't had answers to. Kerry Leider explained that there has been discussion and information provided on all the projects and costs over runs. He also stated that he has offered to have Member Johnston or any board member come to his office to review information.

Member Cameron asked about the cost status reports and available funds from completed sites. Mr. Leider explained that those funds would be saved to consider add alternates and keep the overall project within budget.

Member Johnston asked about the status of staff issues at Denfeld. Mr. Leider indicated the issues have been or are being dealt with.

Upon a vote on the remainder of the business committee report as presented, the same was approved 6-1 as follows:

Yea: Cameron, Kasper, Miernicki, Seliga Punyko, Wasson, Westholm Nay: Johnston

> Other August 2012

➤ Chair Wasson adjourned the Regular School Board Meeting of August 21, 2012 at 7:55 p.m.